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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services
Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (fermerly
known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited) ("the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at
March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the 'Auditor's Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of cur report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2.39 B, to the financial statements which describes that an appeal has been filed
by the Company before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India in relation to liguidation of collaterals to
regularize outstanding debit obligation by the Company. Pending the outcome of such appeal and based on
the legal opinion, no adjustments have been made by the management of the Company to these financial
statements.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Directors report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materia[ly misstated If, based
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, inciuding the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financiaf
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
recerds, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going cencern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or fo cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but te do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error, and to issue an audifor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably he
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audif. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audif evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Ceonclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financiai statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify

our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's

report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As reguired by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Cenftral
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1"
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a)

)

()

(d)

{e)

4]

Q)

(h

We have sought and obtained alf the information and explanations which to the best of cur knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, specified under section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken
onrecord by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adeguacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure 2" to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements - Refer Note 2.39 to the financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;
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vi.

There were no amounts which were required o be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the note 2.54 (iv) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or Kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or enfity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and helief, other than
as disclosed in the note 2.54 (v) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties"),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement,

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company;

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software (refer Note 2.56 (b) to the financial statements). Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
CAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

chu/(/‘)/

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102
UDIN: 24102102BKBZY04816

(\MUMBAI

7 5:"’ f
'?,A\.\__v_’_,*{é“g'

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 06, 2024
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

The Infermation and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state

that:

0

(@A

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(& (B)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibie assets.

=)

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment and are verified by the management according to a phased programme designed
to cover all the items over a period of three years. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard fo the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. All Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management in
the previous year in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three
years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets.

)

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee} are held in
the name of the Company.

D

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use
assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024.

(e)

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

(i

(a)

The Company's business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the
basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)}b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Ciii

(a)

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b)

buring the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii}b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

©

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of lcans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(iiiXc) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

()

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 33iD(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(e)

There were no loans or advance in the nature of {oan granted to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

)

The Company has not granted any [oans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 33ii(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv)

There are no loans, investments, quarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the
reguirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

)

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed fo be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{vi}

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost recerds under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.

(vii)

(a)

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us
and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the vear end, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

As informed, the provisions of sales tax, wealth fax, value added tax, excise duty and
customs duty are currently not applicable to the Company.

()]

There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, goods
and service tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

As informed, the provisions of sales tax, wealth tax, value added tax, excise duty and
customs duty are currently not applicable to the Company.

(viid)

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement o report on clause 3{viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(ix)

(a)

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other horrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

16))

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

()

The Company did not have anyterm loans outstanding during the year hence, the
requirement to report on clause (ix)}c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{d)

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e)

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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N

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

x)

€))

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(Gx)(a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

)

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully
or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(h) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi)

@)

No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

b

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c)

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

(xii)

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(it

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section
177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements te report under
clause 3(xiii} of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to
the Company.

{(xiv)

(a)

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit repori, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

(xv)

The Company has nof entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)

(a)

The provisions of section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to repoert on clause (xvi)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b}

The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as
per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

()]

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

()

There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year respectively.
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(xviiD)

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(Xix)

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 2.50 to the financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of reafization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)

(a)

There are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a fund specified in
Schedule VH of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub
section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 2.48 to the
financial statements.

()

There are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred to a special account in
compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has
been disclosed in note 2.48 to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

g™ >

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102

UDIN: 24102102BKBZYQ04816
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date:; May 06, 2024
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's report of even date on the financial statements of Nuvama
Clearing Services Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Nuvama Clearing
Services Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited) ("the Company") as of March 31,
2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderiy and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on
Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financlal controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed fo
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
ransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
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generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion ar improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such iniernal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note issued by the ICAL

For 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

é[\m ws )/,.

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102
UDIN: 24102102BKBZY04816
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 06, 2024




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited]

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

[Currency : Indian rupees in million}

ASSETS

Non current assets
(a} Property, plant and equipment
(b) fnvestment property
(c} Intangible assets
(d) !ntangible assets under development
() Financial assets
(I} Investments
(i) Other financial assets
[f) Deferred tax assets {net)

Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i} Securities held for trading
{ii) Trade receivables
{iii} Cash and cash equivalents
{iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
{v) Other financial assets
(b} Other current assets
(c) Current tax assets {net)

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

{a) Equity share capital
(b} Other equity

Liabllitles
Non current [labilitles
() Financizl lizbilities
Other financial lfabilities
{b} Provision
{c) Deferred tax liabitities {net}

Current liabilitles
(a) Financizl liabilities
{i) Trade payables
{a} total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
{b) total outstanding dues of creditars other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises
{ii) Debtsecurities
{tii} Barrowings (other than debt securities)
{iv] Other financial liabilities
{b) Other current liabilities
{c) Provisions
{d) Current tax ffabilities (net)

Total equity and ltahilities
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For §.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.301003E/E300005

L#BW‘%

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No:102102

Mumbai
May 06, 2024

Note

21
2.2
13
2.4

5

2.7

238
2.9
2,10
211
212
213
2.14

2.15
216

217
2.18
27

2,19

2.20
221
222
2,23
2.24
2,25

1&2

Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
11491 173.24
114.00 147.35
43.79 1247
- 17.40
110.73 231.81
141.51 187.28
44.48 -
56%.42 763,35
2.87 2,608.88
260.27 520.65
544.55 4,352.86
1,06,476.58 38,145.00
3,060.17 296.07
74.30 124.48
9.44 61.94
1,10,428.18 46,109,588
1,10,997.60 A46,879.23
62.68 62.68
6,323.28 3,804.88
6,385,956 3,867.56
64.85 56.22
25.16 21.42
- 47.67
20.01 12531
0.50 0.51
82,51 186.66
48,97 -
144 -
1,04,229.09 42,615.1¢
97.29 35.94
7.28 6.13
54.55 32.02
1,04,521.63 42,886.36
1,10,997.60 46,879.23

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

hY
Udit Sureka -

Executive Director & CEQ

DIN : 0215903

2

Shiv Sehgal

W

Non-Executive Director

DiN : 07132524

(e -

Gliija Joshi

Company Secretary

Mumbat
May 06, 2024

Arbindd Ghimire
xecutive Directer
DIN : 10097420

>4

ManoYSharma
Chief Financial Officer




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edehwveiss Custodial Services Limited]

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Indian rupees in million}

Revenue from operations
fee and commission income

Interest income
Rental income

Net {loss)/ gain on fair value changes
Tetal revenue from operations

Other Income
Total Income

Expenses

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Impairment on financial instruments
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment

Other expenses
Total expenses

Profit before tax

Tax expenses: {refer note 2_35)

Current tax
Deferred tax

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement loss on defined benefit plans - gratuity [(QCI)

Add: Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Earnings per equity share {Face vaiue of Rs. 10 each):

Baslc and Piluted (INR)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No.301003E/E300005

‘\m"‘{bqy

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner

Membership No:102102

Mumbai
May 06, 2024

Note

2.26
2.27
2.28
2.29

2.30

2.31
2.32
2.33
2.1,2.2,23
2.34

2.38
1&2

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
863.70 42695
4,602.77 2,052.05
- 182.76
(3.71} 261.59
5,462.76 2,923.35
54.29 67.59
5,517.05 2,990.94
336.43 277.84
1,336.38 7315
103.37 {5.24})
57.64 152.05
328.50 520.87
2,162.32 1,684.67
3,354.73 1,306.27
925.28 270.33
{91.96} 57.36
2,516.81 978.58
[0.78} {1.30)
0.1% 0.33
{0.57} (0.97}
2,516.24 977.61
401.57 156.14

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Udit Sureka rhinda Ghimire
Executive Director & CEQ Executive Director
DIN : 02190342 BIN : 10097420
o e
Shiv Sehgal Manoj Sharma
Non-Executive Birector Chief Financial Officer

DIN ;07112524

%}" .

Girija Joshi
Company Secretary

Mumbai
May 06, 2024




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited]

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

[Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

A, Equity share capital

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 62,68 62.68
Issue of shares during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 62.68 62.68
B. Other Equity

Securities premium Deemed capital Retained Total

reserve contribution - ESOP earnings
Balance as at Aprif 01, 2022 652.10 8.92 2,230.54 2,891.56
Profit for the year - - 578.58 978.58
QGther comprehensive income - - {0.97) {0.97)
Total comprehensive income - - 977.61 977.61
Adjustment of share based payments on lapses - - 1.52 152
Jcancellation
Dividends to shareholders - - |65.81) {65.81)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 652,10 8.92 3,143.86 3,804,888
Profit for the year - B 2,516.81 2,516.81
Other comprehensive income - - (0.57) (0.5
Total comprehensive income - - 2,516.24 2,516.24
Adiustment of share based payments on lapses - “ 216 2.16
fcancellation
Transfer frem deemed capital contribution - ESOP - (8.92) B.92 -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 652,10 - 5,671.18 6!323.28

As per our repart of even date attached

For S.R. Batlihel & Ca. LLP
Chartered Accountants
1CAl Firms Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

‘lr\rc;u-(y—‘\)/

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No:102102

Mumbai
May 06, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

* N
Udit Sure nda Ghimire

Executive Director & CEQ
DIN 102190342

Shiv Sehgal
Nan-Executive Director

DIN : 07112524

%/,) .

GitiJa Joshi
Campany Secretary

Mumbai
May 06, 2024

Executive Directar
DIN 1 16097420

m

o=

Manoj Sharma
Chief Financial Cfficer




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : fndian rupees in millian)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A Cash ftow from operating activities
Profit befare taxation 3,354.73 1,306.27
Adjustments for
Depreciation, amartisation and impairment {refer note below 1} 105.49 15205
Impairmant of financial instruments 203 (5.29}
Impairment of investment 101.34 -
Less/ (gain) on sale of praperty, plant 2nd equipment 0.62 0.02}
Unrealised loss / (gain) on securities held for trading 243,50 {206.76}
Fair value {galn)/loss on financial instruments. 0.03 (0.03}
Interest expense on lease liabilities {refer note below 2) 13.86 4245
Interest expense on borrawings 25.64 -
Interest income on preference shares {15.50) {15.81})
Discount on commercial paper 0.99 -
Gain on termination of lease - {31.97}
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 3,839.13 1,240.89
Add / (Less): Adjustments for working capital changes
(tncrease) / decrease in trade recelvables 25835 4,163,95
{Increase) / decrease in other bank balances {68,331.58) (7,585.95)
(Inerease) / decrease in securities held for trading 2,356.11 [2,022.09)
{Increase) / decrease in other financial assets (2,718.33) {184.54)
{Increase) / decrease in other non financial assets 50.18 (29.97)
Increase / {(decrease) in Fabilities and provisions 61,632.35 4,250,256
Cash used 1n operations {2,913.79) {161.46}
Income taxes paid {net of refund} {854.84) {276.61)
Net cash used In operating activities - A (3,768.63) {438.07)
B Cash flow from Investing activitles
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangibles (Refer note 4} {28.42) (27.62}
Sale of preperty, plant and equipmznt and intangibles 0.04 0.04
Interest income on Preference shares 15.50 1645
Sale of investment 19.50 13.55
Purchase of investmeat - (5.00}
Net cash generated from / {used In) Investing activitles - B 6.62 {2.58)
¢ Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from unsecured foan 12,487.60 -
Repayment af unsecured loan {12,497.60) .
Proceeds from inter corporate deposit 1,500.00 -
Repayment of inter carporate deposit (1,500.00} -
Praceeds from commercial paper 47.98 -
Repayment of lease Habilities {70.08) (153.86)
Dividend paid to shareholders - (65.81)
Interest paid {24.20} -
Net cash used In financing activities - C {46.30} {219.77)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (3,508.31=)' {660.42)
Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year {Refer note 2.10) 4,352.86 5.013.28
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year 544,55 4,352.86

Notes:
1 Depreciation, amortisation and impalrment is gross of reimbursement received of Rs, 47.85 million for the year ended March 31, 2024. (Previous Year: Nil}
2 interest expenses on lease liabilities is gross of reimbursement received of Rs, 11,60 million for the year ended March 31, 2024. {Previous Year: Nil)

3 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under "Indirect Method™ as set out In indian Accounting Standard - 7 "Cash Flow Statements" specified under Section
133 of Companies Azt ,2013 read with Paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

4 Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangibles includes movement of intangible assets under development and capital expenditure during the year,

As per aur report of even date attached

For S.R. Batlibol & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
0\9)@*’

ICAl Firm Registraticn No,301003E/€300005

l\!‘z;ufz_%

per Shrawan Jalan Udit Sur Arbinda Ghimire
Partner Executive Director & CEC Executive Directar
Membership No:102102 DIN 102190342 DIN : 10057420
gf&})}( 'U'“ﬂt ’
Shiv Sehgal Mano| Sharma
Non-Executive Director Chief Financfal Dfficer

DIN: 07212524
LY

Glrija foshj
Company Secretary
Mumbai Mumbai
May 05, 2024 May 086, 2024




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Indian rupees in million)
1.1 Corporate information

Nuvama Clearing Services Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited) (‘The Company')
was incorporated on 16 October 2008 having CIN US1109MH2008PLC187594. On October 17, 2022, the
Company changed its name from Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited to Nuvama Clearing Services Limited.
The registered office of the company is located at Tower 3, Wing B, Kohinoor City Mall, Kohinoor City, Kirol
Road, Kurla {West), Mumbai- 400070.

PAGAC Ecstasy Pte. Limited is the Ultimate Holding cornpany.

The Company is registered as a Professional Clearing Member (PCM) with NSE Clearing Limited (NCL), Indian
Clearing Corperation Limited (ICCL), Multi Commodity Clearing Corporation of india Limited (MCXCCL} and
MNational Commodity Clearing Limited {(NCCL) which clears and settles trades of various trading members and
custodial participants. Other services provided include fund accounting services, Company invests in fixed
deposits & other highly liquid callable instruments as part of its treasury activities.

1.2 Summary of material accounting policy information
1.2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time)
and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant
Schedule lll). These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the
Company on May 06, 2024.

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments such as derivative financial instruments and other financial assets held for trading, which have
been measured at fair value. The financial statements are presented in indian Rupees {INR} and all values
are rounded off to the nearest million, except when otherwise indicated.

1.2.2 Presentation of financial statements

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle. Based on the nature of services rendered to customers and time elapsed between
deployment of resources and the realisation in cash and cash equivalents of the consideration for such
services rendered, the Company has considered an operating cycle of 12 months.

Financial assets and financial labilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net
basis in all of the following circumstances:

1. The normal course of business
2. The event of default
3. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties

&
EReR act ,9},5’



Nuvama Clearing Services Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Indian rupees in million)

1.23

1.24

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue is measured at transaction price i.e. the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to the customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. The Company consider the terms of the contracts and its customary
business practices to determine the transaction price. Where the consideration promised is variable, the
Company excludes the estimates of variable consideration that are constrained. The Company applies the
five-step approach for recognition of revenue:

i} Identification of contract{s) with customers;

ii) Identification of the separate performance obligations in the contract;

iii) Determination of transaction price;

iv} Allocation of transaction price to the separate performance obligations; and
v) Recognition of revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied

The company recognises revenue from the following sources:

e Fee income includes fees for clearing services, referral & fund accounting. The right to receive the
clearing fees arises when the trade is executed and a valid contract is generated for the trade. All other
fee income including referral fees, fund accounting etc is accounted on an accrual basis as per Ind AS 115
in accordance with the terms and contracts entered into between the Company and the counterparty and
presented service transferred at point in time and over time.

* |Interest income is recognized on accrual basis.

¢ Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can
be measured reliably.

Financial Instruments

Date of recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities with exception of borrowings are initially recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This
includes regular way trades; purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place. The Company recognises
borrowings when funds are received by the Company.

Initial measurement of financial instruments
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (QCH), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them, With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the
practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are
measurad at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section
1.2.3 Revenue from contracts with customers.




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Indian rupees in million}

1.2.4

1.2.5

Financial Instruments {Continued)

Day 1 profit or loss

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair
value is based on a valuation technigue using only inputs observable in market transactions, the Company
recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain on fair value changes. In
those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not ohservable, the
difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in statement of
profit and loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Classification of financial instruments

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and
the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding. The changes in carrying value of financial assets is recognised in profit and loss account,

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FVTOC! if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by
both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income,

Financial assets at fair value through profit or lass (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. The Company
measures all financial assets classified as FYTPL at fair value at each reporting date. The changes in fair value
of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account.

The Company measures financial assets that meet the following conditions at amortised cost:
s thefinancial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and
s the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income {except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or
loss on initlal recognition):
o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and
+ the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Indian rupees in mitlion)

1.2.6

Financial assets and liabilities

Amortized cost and effective interest rate {EIR)
The effective interest rate is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial
recognition. For purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest
rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the
amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.

Financial assets held for trading

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased or issued
primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolic of financial
instruments that are managed together, for which there evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit is
taking. Held-for-trading assets and liabilities are recorded and measured in the balance sheet at fair value.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been
either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at
fair value under Ind AS 109. Management only designates an instrument at FVTPL upen initial recognition
when one of the following criteria are met. Such designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
hasis.

» The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis;
Or

s The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy; Or

e The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not significantly modify the
cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it is clear with little or no analysis when
a similar instrument is first considered that separation of the embedded derivative(s} is prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in
fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of movements in fair value of liabilities
designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Company’s own credit risk. Such changes in fair value are
recorded in the own credit reserve through OCl and do not get recycled to the profit or loss. Interest earned
or incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest income or finance cost, respectively,
using the EIR, taking into account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs being an integral
part of instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is recorded
using contractual interest rate.




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued}

for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Indian rupees in million)

1.2.6

1.2.7

1.2.8

Financial assets and liabilities {Continued)

Investment in equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, unless the
management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its strategic equity investments to be measured at
FVOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of Equity under Ind AS and are not held for trading. Such
classification is determined an an instrument-by-instrument basis. '

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except [oan commitments, financial guarantees, and
derivative financial liabilities.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue funds, and costs
that are an integral part of the EIR.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument,

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or canceliation of the Company's own equity
instruments.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the
exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line.

Derecognition of financial instruments

Derecognition of financial asset

A financial asset {or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The
Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer
gualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either

* The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

o It retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumed a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay to third party under pass
through arrangement,




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

for the year ended March 31, 26024

(Currency : Indian rupees in million}

1.2.8

129

Derecognition of financial instruments {Continued)

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to receive
the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those
cash flows to one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients'}), when all of the following conditions are met:

e The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected
equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full recovery
of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates.

¢ The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients.

»  The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without
material delay, In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for
investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the period between the
collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
e The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

e The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell
the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without
imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Where an existing financia! liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference
between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company records allowance for expected credit loss {ECL) for all financial assets, other than financial

assets held at FVTPL together with financial guarantee contracts. Equity instruments are not subject to
impairment.

Simplified approach

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
fram its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on
portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the
expected life of the receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. However, if receivables
contain a significant financing component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss
allowance by applying general approach to measure £CL.




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (Continued}
for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Indian rupees in million)
1.2,10 Determination of fair value

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* |n the principal market for the asset or liability, or
« |nthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A
fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation technigues that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. In order to
show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are cliassified based on a hierarchy of
valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments:

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company considers
markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the
identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the
balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments
Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly
observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 financial instruments

Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unohservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
{based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting pericd. The Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the adopted
methodologies and model calibrations.

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its financial
instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates for the
expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the
credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and
reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.
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1.2.11

1.2.12

Write-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no reasonable
expectation of recovery.

Property, plant and equipment, Right-of-use assets and Capital work in progress

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by
changing the amortization period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting
estimates.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over their useful
lives, Depreciation is provided on a written down value basis fram the date the asset is ready for its intended
use or put to use whichever is earlier. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upte the date of
disposal.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement
thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss,

As per the requirement of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the
estimated useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of Schedule || of

the Act for calculating the depreciation.

The estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Class of asset Useful life
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computers and data processing units — End user devices, such as 3 years
desktops, laptops etc.

Computers and data processing units - Servers and networks 6 years

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property,
plant and equipment and intangible asset recognised as of 1 April 2017 (transition date) measured as per
the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Right-of-use assets are presented together with property, plant and equipment in the statement of financial
position - refer to the accounting policy. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets
or the period of lease whichever is shorter.
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1.2.14

1.2.15

1.2.16

Intangible assets

The Company’s intangible assets mainly include the value of software. An intangible asset is recognised only
when is cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that
are attributable to it will flow to the Company.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amaortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and
assassed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal {i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition
of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Intangible assets such as computer software Is amortised over a period of 3 years based on its estimated
useful life.

Investment properties

Investment Properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation and are measured.
Upon initial recognition, an investment property is measured at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to the initial recognition, investment property is reported at cost less accumulated depreciation,

Depreciation is recognised using written down method so as to write off the cost of the investment property
lass their residual values over their useful lives specified in schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 or in the
case of assets where the useful life was determined by technical evaluation, over the useful life so
determined.

Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption
of the future benefits embodied in the investment property. The estimated useful life and residual values are
also reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/residual
value is accounted on prospective basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at Banks, on hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less, that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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1.2.17

1.2.18

Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency of the Company.
Transactions in currencies other than Indian Rupees {i.e. foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retransiated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item {i.e,, translation differences on
items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCl or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or
loss, respectively)

Retirement and other employee benefits
Provident fund and national pension scheme

The Company contributes to a recognized provident fund and national pension scheme which is a defined
contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the
gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. Such benefit is discounted to determine its
present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted.

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on independent actuarial
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The obligation is measured at present values of estimated
future cash flows. The discounted rates used for determining the present vaiue are based on the market
yields on Government Securities as at the balance sheet date.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability, are recognised immediately in the balance sheet
with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OC! in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Compensated Leave Absences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their annual leave
entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the charge to the statement
of profit and loss and corresponding liability on account of such accumulated leave entitlement based on a
valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of providing annual leave benefits are determined using the
projected unit credit method.
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1.2.19

1.2.20

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees by Nuvama Wealth Management Limited (“the Holding
Company”) and by Edelweiss Financial Services Limited {“the erstwhile ultimate parent Group”) are
measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of Equity-settled share-based payments determined at the grant date is expensed over the
vesting period, based on the estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity. In cases where the share options granted vest in instalments over the vesting period, each
instalment is treated as a separate grant, because each instalment has a different vesting period, and hence
the fair value of each instalment differs.

Income tax expenses
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Current income tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income. Current income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCl or directly in equity. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses, Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probahle
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to
equal taxahle and deductible temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the Company relies on the same forecast assumptions
used elsewhere in the financial statements and in other management reports, which, among other things,
reflect the potential impact of climate-related development on the business, such as increased cost of
production as a result of measures to reduce carbon emission.
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1.2,20

1.2.21

1.2.22

Income tax expenses (Continued)

Deferred tax {Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation autherity on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Good and service tax expenses

The entity avails Input Tax credit (‘ITC’) of GST paid on various expenses incurred. Based on the ratio of
exempted turnover v/s taxable turnover of the entity, GST Input Tax credit is being expensed off on a
monthly basis to GST Expense a/c. Further, ITC on ineligible expenses {on which ITC is restricted under GST
law} is also debited to GST Expense.

Leases

Company as a lessee:

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e, the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of ease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of
the assets.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
{including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
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1.2.22

1.2.23

Leases {Continued)

Lease Liabilities {Continued)

reduced for the lease payments made. in addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in
the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they
are incurred to produce inventories} in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
oceurs,

Short term lease and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term |ease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to
leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the |ease term

Company as a lessor

lLeases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset is classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Injtial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer
from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables
at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as
1o reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the [ease.

Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 33
- Earnings Per Share. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to
the equity holders of parent company {after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes} by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of EPS, the potential ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion are included in the
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation of basic EPS {and, therefore, also diluted
EPS) from the date of issue of the instrument, since their issue is solely dependent on the passage of time.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to
issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by
dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of
equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.
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1.2.24 Provisions and other contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

A contingent liability is:

{2) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
entity; or

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised hecause:

(i) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or

(i} the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company
takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence
from similar incidents.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is
no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is
reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed
continually and if it is virtually certain that an economic benefit will arise, the asset and related income are
recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

1.2.25 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
the accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year.

(a} Actuarial assumptions used in calculation of defined benefit plans
(b) Assumptions used in estimating the useful lives of tangible assets reported under property, plant and
equipment {refer note 1.2.12).
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1.2.25 significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions {Continued)

Provision and contingent lability

On an ongoing basis, Company reviews pending cases, claims by third parties and other contingencies. For
contingent losses that are considered probable, an estimated loss is recorded as an accrual in financial
statements. Loss contingencies that are considered possible are not provided for but disclosed as contingent
liabilities in the financial statements. Contingencies the likelihood of which is remote are not disclosed in the
financial statements. Gain contingencies are not recognized until the contingency has been resolved and
amounts are received or receivable.

Defined benefit plan

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial vajuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation
and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

Leases

Ind AS 116 defines a lease term as the non-cancellable period for which the lessee has the right to use an
underlying asset including optional periods, when an entity is reasonably certain to exercise an option to
extend (or not to terminate) a lease. The Company consider all relevant facts and circumstances that create
an economic incentive for the lessee to exercise the option when determining the lease term. The option to
extend the lease term are included in the lease term, if it is reasonably certain that the lessee will exercise
the option. The Company reassess the option when significant events or changes in circumstances occur that
are within the control of the lessee.

Investment property

Investment property is defined as assets held primarily for rental income, capital appreciation, or both,
rather than for operational use or sale, reflecting management's strategic intent. Upon initial recognition,
investment properties are recorded at cost, with management making informed decisions regarding direct
costs attributable to acquisition. Subsequent measurement at fair value entails management's assessment of
various factors, including market conditions and property-specific attributes. Management exercises
judgment in determining fair values, often relying on independent valuations or recent transaction prices for
similar properties.

Provisions for Income Taxes

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on
whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can involve
complex issues, which can only be resclved over extended time periods.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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1.2.25

1.2.26

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions {Continued)

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the Solely Payments of Principal
and Interest (“SPPI”) test and the business model test. The Company determines the business model at a
level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business
objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the
performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the
performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of these assets are
compensated.

The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised prior to their
maturity to understand the guantum, the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent
with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company's
continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held
continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate, whether there has been a change in business model
and 50 a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liahilities within the next financial year, as described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Effective interest rate method

The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income/expense using a rate of return that represents
the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioral life of financial instruments and
recognises the effect of characteristics of the product life cycle

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behavioral and life-
cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes fee income/expense that are integral parts of the
instrument.

Incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (‘IBR’) to measure lease liabilities. Incremental borrowing rate is the rate of
interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment.




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency : Indian rupees in million)

1.2.26

1.2.27

1.2.28

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued}

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
Hability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous} market at the measurement date
under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly ohservable or
estimated using another valuation technigue. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of liguidity and model inputs related to items such
as credit risk {both own and counterparty}, funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Standards issued and effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Amendment Rules,
2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2023. The Company applied for the first-time these amendments.

{i} Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounting
policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial staterments.

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing
the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose
their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in
making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company’s financial statements.

{iii} Deferred Tax related to Assets and Lizbilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to ind AS
12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases.

The Company previously recognised for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. As a result of these
amendments, the Company has recognised a separaie deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and
a deferred tax liability in relation to its right-of-use assets. Since, these balances qualify for offset as per the
requirements of paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12, there is no impact in the balance sheet. There was also no
impact on the opening retained earnings as at 1 Aprit 2022,

Standards notified but not yet effective

There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date
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Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited]
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in million) Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2.6 Other financial assets
{Unsecured considered good, unless stated otherwise)

Deposits placed with exchange 75.40 36.93
Security deposits - rent 64,43 148.87
Other deposits 1.68 1.48

141,51 187.28

2.7  Deferred tax assets / (llabilitles) (net)

Deferred tax assets
i} Trade receivable

ECL provision on trade receivables 1.35 0.83
ii} Property, plant and equipment and intangibles

Difference between book and tax depreciation 2.83 4.84
ii) Investment property

Difference between book and tax depreciation 2,01 -
iv} Investments and other financial instruments

Fair valuation of investments and stock-in-trade 25.66 -
v) Employee benefit cbligations

Disallowances under section 438 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 8.14 6.9E
vi) Others

Lease liabifity 35.06 49,21

Sub total A 75.05 61.79

Deferred tax liabilities
i} Investments and other financial instruments

Fair valuation of investments and stock-in-trade - 62.75
i) Investment property
Difference between book and tax depreciation - 297
iii} Others
Right of use 28.71 43,10
Unamortised loan origination costs - EIR on borrowings 1.86 0.64
Sub total B 30,57 109.46
Total {A - B) 44.48 {47.67)

2.8  Securities held for trading
At fair value through profit and loss
NSE equity shares - unlisted 2.87 2,608.88
Less : impaired loss alfowance - -

Total 2.87 2,608.88

(i) Outside India - -
{ii} India 2.87 2,608.88

Total 2.87 2,608.88

29  Trade receivables

Secured, considered good * 191.34 417.96
Unsecured, considered good 70.71 104,23
Trade receivable - credit impaired 3.50 1.71
Total (1) 265.55 523.90

Less : Impairment allowance {provisicn for expected credit loss)

Unsecured, considered good 1.78 1.54
Trade receivable - credit impaired 3.50 1.71
Total {I1) 5,28 3.285
Total (i-11) 260.27 520,65

* Secured by securities




Nuvama Clearing Sexrvices Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited]
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
[Currency : Indian rupees in million}

2.9 Trade receivables {Continued)

Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade and [ease receivables:

Particulars Amount
Impairment allowance measured as per simplified

approach

Impairment allowance as on bMarch 31, 2022 8.54
Add/ {less): asset originated or acquired {net) {5.29)
Impairment allowance as on March 31, 2023 3.25

Add/ {less): asset originated or acquired {net) 2.03

impairment allowance as on March 31, 2024 5.28

Trade Receivables ageing schedule

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction
Less than 6 6 months -1 1-2 years 2-3years Morethan3 Total
maonths year years
March 31, 2024
i) Undisputed Trade recelvables — considered good 261,96 0.09 - - - 262.05
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — ¢redit impaired - - 2.02 0.19 1.29 3.50

(ifi} Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good - - - - - -
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - . - -

Gross receivables (A) 261,96 0.09 2.02 Q.18 1.29 265.55
1} Undisputed Trade recelvables ~ considered good 173 0.05 - - - 1.78
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - " 2.02 0.19 1.29 3.50

(iif} Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good - - - - - -
{iv} Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -

Total ECL provision on receivables (B) 1.73 0.05 2,02 0.19 1.29 5.28
Total recelvables net of provision (A - B) 260,23 0.04 - - - 260.27
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction
Lessthan 6 6 months -1 1-2 years 2-3years  More than 2 Tatal
months year years

March 31, 2023

i} Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 52219 - - - - 52219
{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - 0.26 145 1.7

(iif) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good - - - - . .
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - . . - -

Gross receivables (A} 52219 - - 0.26 1.45 523.90
i} Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 1.54 - - - - 1.54
{ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - - 0.28 1.45 1.7

(i) Disputed Trade Receivables—considered good - - - - - -
(iv) Bisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - B -

Total ECL provision on receivables {B) 1.54 - - 0.26 1.45 3.25

Total receivables net of provision (A - B} 520.65 - - - - 520.65




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited]
Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in miflion) As at As at
March 3%, 2024 March 31, 2023
2,10  cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
- in current accounts 544,55 4,352.86
544.55 4,352.86

211 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Fixed deposits with banks 1,471.05 978.89
Fixed deposits with banks 1o the extent held as margin money or guarantees or 1,05,005.53 37,166.11
lien for bank overdraft (refer below note 2.11A)

1,06,476.58 38,145.00
2.11A Encumbrances on fixed deposits held by the Company
i} Pledged with exchanges for meeting margin requirements 1,01,477.40 32,728.08
ii) Pledged with banks for obtaining bank guarantees as per sanction terms 3,500.50 4,400.63
i) Pledged with banks for obtaining bank overdraft 27.63 37.40
Total 1,05,005.53 37,156.11
2.12  Other financial assets
{Unsecured Considered good, unless stated otherwise}
Deposits placed with exchange 2.00 2.20
Receivable from exchange fctearing house (net) 3,056.56 289.13
Other assets 1.51 4.74
3,060.17 296.07
2,13 Other current assets
Input tax credit 11.50 50.96
Other deposits 13.28 0.05
Prepaid expenses 48,78 7214
Vendor Advances 0.71 1.32
Advances to employees 0.03 0.01
74.30 124.48
2.14  Current tax assets {net}
Income tax 9.44 61.54

{net of provision for tax Rs. 300.89 million, March 31, 2023 Rs. 239,60 million)

9.44 61.94




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

[Cutrency : Indian rupees in million)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2.15 Equity share capital
Authorised :
10,000,000 (Previous year; 10,000,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each 100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
issued, Subscribed and Pald up:
6,267,500 {Previous year:6,267,500) equity shares of f5.10 each, fully paid-up 62.68 62.68
62.68 62.68
0. Movement in share capital :
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 62,67,500 62.68 62,67,500 62,68
Shares issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 62,67,500 62.68 62,67,500 62.68
b. Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/ assoclates
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Noofshares  Amount %  Noofshares  Amount %
52,67,500 62.68 100% 62,67,500 62.68 100%
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited [Formerly known as
£delweiss Securities Limited], the holding company
&2,67,500 62.68 100% 52,67,500 62.68 100%
c. Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
Mareh 31, 2024 March 21,2023
No of shares % No of shares %
62,67,500 100% &2,67,500 100%
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited [Formerly known as
Edelweiss Securities Limited], the holding company
62,67,500 100% 62,67,500 100%
d. Shares held by promoters at the end of the year March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
No, of Shares %of total % Change during No, of Shares %of total % Change
shares the year shares during the
Promoter name year
Nuvama Weaith Management Limited [Formerly known as 62,67,500 100% - 62,67,500 100% -
tdelweiss Securities Limited]
PAGAC Eestasy Pte Limited - Ultimate Holding Company - - - - - -
: 62,67,500 100% - 62,67,500 100% .

e. Terms/rights attached to equity shares ;

The Company has only one class of equity shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vote per
share held. In the event of liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of

ail preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custedial Services Limited]
Wotes to the financial statements fContinued}
{Currency ; Indian rupees in million)
As at As at

March 31, 2624 March 31,2023

2,16  Other equity

Securities premium reserve 652.10 652.10
Deemed capital contribution - 8.92
Retained earnings 5,671.18 3,143.86

6,323.28 3,804.88

A. Nature and purpose of reserves

a8

. Securities premium reserve
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purpeses in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

o

. Deemed capital contribution
Deemed capital contribution relates to share options granted to eligible employees of the Company by the Edelweiss Financial Services Limited,
erstwhile parent company of Nuvama Wealth Management Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Securities Limited], under its employee share option

plan.
c. Retained earnings
Retained earnings comprises of the Company’s undistributed earnings after taxes.
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

8. Movement in other equity
{a) Securities premium reserve 652.10 652.10
Add : Additions during the year - -

652.10 652.10
(b} Deemed capital contribution - ESOP 8.92 8.92
Less ; Transfer to retained earnings (8.92) -
- 8.92
{c) Retaired earnings
Opening Balance 3,143.86 2,230.54
Adjustment of share based payments on lapsed feancelted 2.16 1.52
Transfer from Deemed capital centribution - ESOP 8.92 -
Add: Praofit for the year 2,516.81 978.58
Add: Other comprehensive income for the yvear [0.57) (0.97)
Amount available for appropriation 5,671.,18 3,209.67
Appropriations:
Less ¢ Intetim dividend - {65.81)
5,671.18 3,143.86

6,323.28 3,804.88




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited]

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in million) Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2.17  COther financial lizbilities
Lease liability {refer note 2,39) 54.85 56.22
54.85 56,22
248  Provisions - non-current
Pravision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 2.46} 21.92 13.98
Compensated leave absences 3.24 2.44
25.16 21.42
2.19 Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.50 0.51
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small 8251 196.66
enterprises
83.01 197,17

Trade payables aging schedule

Outstanding for follewing periods from date of transaction

Particulars

Unbilled Lessthan 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years  Total
March 31, 2024
(i) MSME 0.47 0.03 - - - 0.50
(@) Others 35.06 45.98 - - 157 8251
(iii)Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - -
{iv)Disputed dues-Cthers - - - B - -
Total 35.53 45,91 - - 157 83,01
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction

Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3years  Total
March 3%, 2023
{iy MSME 0.39 0.12 - - - 0.51
(ii) Others 155.58 29.24 0.01 1.29 0.54 196.66
{iil)Disputed dues-MSME - - - - - -
(iv)Disputed dues-Others . . - N . .
Total 155.97 19.36 0.01 1.29 0.54 197.17

Trade Payables includes Rs. 0.50 million {Previous year: Rs. 0.51 million} payable to “Suppliers” registered under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, No interest has been paid / is payable by the Company during the year to “Suppliers” registered under this Act,
The above mentioned is based on the responses received by the Company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said

Act.




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited]
Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in million)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2.20 Debt securities
Unsecured
Commercial paper
Opening . -
Addition during the year 50.00 -
Less : Unamortised discount (1.03) -
{Discounting rate @ 8.50% maturity on July'2024; March 2023 : Nil)
48.97 -
2.21 Borrowings {other than debt securities}
At amortised cost
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 1.44 -
(Interest rate payable @ 10.90%; March 2023 : Nit)
1.44 -
2.21A Unsecured - At amortised cost
{i} Borrowing outside India R .
{ii} Borrowing in India 1.44 -
Total 1.84 -
2,22 Other financial liabilities
Margin money payasble to client {net) {refer note 2.49} 1,03,640.53 39,805.70
{Deployed in the form of bank balances and fixed deposits}
Accrued salaries and benefits 116.47 79.90
Payable to exchange / clearing house {net) 19.94 1.69
Retention money payable 0.03 0.03
Qutstanding expenses payable 374,88 142,23
Advances from customers 0.03 2,440.99
Lease liability (refer note 2.39) 74,37 139,22
Other 2.84 5.34
1,04,225.09 42,615,10
2,23 Other current liabilities
Income received in advance - 0.03
Statutory liabilities* 97.28 35.90
Others 0.01 .01
97.29 35.94
* Includes withholding taxes, other taxes payable
2.24 Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 2.46) 6.33 5.41
Compensated leave absences 0.95 0.72
7.28 5,13
2,25 Current tax liabilities (net)
Provision for taxation 5455 32.02

(net of advance tax and TDS assets Rs. 2,554.20 million; March 31, 2023 Rs.
1,648,060 million}

54.55 32.02




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)
Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency ; Indian rupees in million) For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2.26 Fee and commission income

Clearing fees 716.74 325.61
Advisory and other fees 146.96 101.34

863.70 426.95

2.26A Service transferred at a point in time 833.70 388.62
Service transferred over time 30.00 38.33
863.70 426,95

2,27 Interestincome

Interest income on deposits 4,587.25 2,036.21
Other interest income 0.02 0.03
interest income - Preference shares 15.50 15.81

4,602.77 2,052.05

2.28 Rentalincome

Rental Income {refer note 2.40) - 182.76

- 182.76

During year ended March 31, 2023 the Company incurred expenses shared premises cost, these costs expended plus markup are recovered
from its group companles represented in reatal income. For the year ended March 31, 2024, these costs expended are recovered as a cost
reimbursement without mark-up & thus such costs so expended are presented net of recoveries in notes 2.1 and 2.32.

2,29 Net (loss)/ gain on fair value changes

{Loss} / gain on securities [3.68} 261.56
{Loss} / gain on investment [0.03} 0.03
{3.71) 261,59

Net gain on fair value changes

Fair Value changes:

Realised 246.22 54,80

Unrealised {249.93) 206.79
{3.71) 261,59

2,30 Other Income

Dividend on securities held for trading 193 0.04

Fund accounting fees 48.28 35.49

Gain on termination of leases - 31.97

Interest on income tax refund 3.61 -

Miscellaneous income 0.47 0.09

54,29 67,59




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited]
Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in million) for the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2.31 Employee benefit expenses [refer note 2.40)

Salaries and wages 296.11 252.96
Caontribution to provident and other funds {refer note 2.46) 13,57 13.44
Expense on share based payments - refer note below 2.60 1.54
Staff welfare expenses 24.15 3.90

336.43 277.84
Note:

1) Nuvama Wealth Management Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Securities Limited] has granted Employee Stock Option
Plans {"ESOP") ta the Group's employees on an equity-settled basis. Nuvama Wealth Management Limited [Formerly known
as Edelweiss Securities Limited] charged to the Company and the Company has recognised share based payment expenses of
Rs. 1.86 million [previcus year: Rs. 1.26 million) for the year ended March 31, 2024 based on fair value as on the grant date
calculated as per option pricing model,

2} Edelweiss Financial Services Limited ("EFSL"} the entity exercising significant influence over the Company (till March 30, 2023),
has granted ESOP/ESAR option 1o acquire equity shares of EFSL that would vest in a graded manner to Company’s employees.
Based on policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged the fair value of such stock options, Company has accepted such cross
charge and recagnised the same under the employee cost.

2.32 Finance costs
Financial liabilities measured at amertised cost

Interest on Margin 1,167.28 £02.47
Interest on borrowing 25.64 -
Biscount on commercial paper 0.99 -
Financial and bank charges 140.01 93.94
Interest on lease liabifity * 2.26 42.45
Interest - others 0.20 0.29
1,336.38 739.15

*Net of cost reimbursement recoveries from its group companies amounting to Rs. 11.60 million for the year ended March
31, 2024, (Previous Year: Nil)

2.33 Impairment on financial instruments

Bad- debts and advances written off - Q.05
Diminution in value of investments 101.34 -
Provision for expected credit loss 2.03 (5.29)

103.37 (5.24)




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited]
Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
[Currency : Indian repees in miflion) For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2.34  Other expenses

Advertisement and business promotion (refer note 2.40) 6.25 25.52
Auditors' remuneration (refer note below) 3.45 2.50
Commission and brokerage 78.31 177.92
Communication 4.66 4.32
Directer's sitting fees 0.20 -
Insurance 0.24 0.32
Legal and professional fees 25.38 59.20
Printing and stationery (refer note 2.40) 0.06 0.13
Rates and taxes 0.02 -
Rent {refer note 2.40) 18,99 36.83
Repairs and maintenance 1.24 1.16
Electricity charges {refer note 2.40} 1.65 14.10
Foreign exchange loss (net) Q.10 0.57
Computer expenses (refer note 2.40) 74,38 61.70
Computer software 19.40 15.01
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 2.48) 22.08 27.88
Dematerialisation charges 0.15 0.08
Rating support fees 2.89 0.84
Loss on sale of of fixed assets 0.62 {0.02)
Membership and subscription 13.30 12.00
Office expenses {refer note 2.40) 35.62 56.06
Postage & courier - 0.05
ROC expenses 0.05 0.01
Goods & Service tax expenses 1.21 2,19
Stamp duty 0.85 1.46
Stock exchange expenses 291 2.54
Traveliing and conveyance 10.17 8.85
Warehousing charges 0.02 0.04
Miscellaneous expenses 0.01 0.40
Qutside services cost 4.29 9.21
328.50 520.87

Note: Auditor's remuneration

for statutory audit fee 1.35 0.95
For limited review fee 1.28 1.05
Others (includes certification fees) 0.67 0.42
Towards reimbursement of expenses 0,15 0.08

Net total 3.45 2.50




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited]

Notes to the financial statements (Continved)

For the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency : Indian rupees in million)

235

2.35a

Income tax

The components of income tax expenses for the year ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 are :

Current tax

Adjustment in respect of incorne tax of prior years

peferred tax relating to originatien and reversal of temporary differences
Total tax charge

Current tax
Deferred tax

Reconcillation of total tax charge
Accounting profit hefore tax as per financial statements

Tax rate (in percentage}

Income tax expenses for current period as per ahove rate

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years

Effect of income not subject to tax: Loss / {Profit) on property, plant and equipment #
Effect of income not subject to tax: Loss / {Profit) on ROU assets and lease liability #
Effect of non—deductible expenses: Penalties #

Effect of non—deductible expenses: Corporate social responsibility

£ffect of non—deductible expenses: Others

Effect of deductible expenses: Bonus PY

Effect of deductible expenses: Dividend

Total
# Amount is less than Rs. 0.01 millicn

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 21, 2023
939,12 266.84
(9.24) 3.49
{92.15) 57.03
837.73 327.36
929.88 270.33
{92.15]) 57.03
837.73 327.36
3,354.73 1,306.27
25.168% 25.168%
844.32 328.76
[9.24) 3.49
(0.00) (1.23)
(0.00) (0.37)
0.00 0.05
5.56 7.02
(0.01) 0.01
(2.90) {6.22}
- {4.15)
837.73 327.36




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited]

Notes to the financial statements [Continved]

For the year ended March 31, 2024
{Currency : Indian rupees in mitlion)

2,35k The followlng table shows deferred tax recorded ln the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:

Movement for the year ended March 31, 2024

Hecognised in Reclassified

Gpenlng defi Closing d
pening deferred Recognised other Re.cognlsed from equlty Total osing deferred
tax asset / In profit or . directly in tax asset /
{liabltity) loss comprehensive equity to profit or movement {liabllity)
income 9 loss
Deferred taxes In refation to:
Property, plant and equipment 4.4 {2.01) - - - (2.01) 2,83
Investment property {2,97) 4.98 - - - 4.98 2.01
Securities heid for trading (62.90) 62,80 - - - 62,80 -
Employee benefits obligations 6.91 1.04 0.19 - - 1.23 8.14
Provision on expected credit loss 0.83 0.52 - - B 0.52 1.35
Right of use & lease liability 6,11 024 - - - 0.24 6.35
Unamortised processing fees (0.64) (1.22) - - - {1.22} (1.86)
Interest income on preference shares 0.15 25.51 - - - 25.51 25.66
Total [47.67) 91.96 0.19 - - 92.15 44.48
Movement for the year ended March 31, 2023
QOpening deferred Recognised Recognised in Recognised Reclassified Closing deferred
N other " . from equity Total
tax asset [ in profit or directly in Others tax asset /
{liability) loss comprehensive equity to profit or movement {tiabllity)
Income loss

Deferred taxes in relation to:
Property, plant and equipment 394 080 - - - 0.90 4,84
Investment property {1.13} (1.84) - - - (1.84) (2.97)
Securities held for trading (10.86} (52.04) - - - (52.04) (62.90)
Employee benefits obligations 6.45 0.12 033 - - 0.45 6.91
Provision on expected credit loss 2.15 (1.33) - - - (1.32) 0.83
Right of use & lease liability 8.79 (2.68) “ - - (2.68) 6.1
Unamortised processing fees - (0.64) - - - (0.64) (0.64)
Interest incame on preference shares - 0,18 - - - 0.15 .15
Total 3,35 (57,36} 0.33 - - {57.02) {47.67)




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited]

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024
{Currency : Indian rupees in million)

2.35 Segment reporting

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the underlying businesses of the reportable segments, namely *Agency business’ was reclassified into 2 new
reportable segments, namely ‘Wealth Management’, ‘Capital Markets'. The said reclassification of business segments was based on internal review of
businesses carried out by the Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM) post the internal restructuring exercise carried out by the Company. The
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments has
been identified as the CODM. The Company has now 2 repartable segments, namely: -

Segment Activities covered
Capital market business includes clearing services
Weaith management business Includes dealing in financial products

Income for each segment has been specifically identified, expenditure, assets and liabilities are either specifically identified with individual segments or
have beea zllocated to segments on a systermnatic basis. Based on such aflocations, segment disclosures relating to revenue, results, assets and
liabilities have been prepared.

Revenue contributed by any single customer in any of the operating segment, whether reportable or otherwise, does not exceed for percent of the
Company's total revenue

Reportable segments
An operating segment is classified as reportable segment if reported revenue {including inter-segment revenue) or absolute amount of result or assets
exceed 10% or more of the combined total of all the operating segments.

Accardingly the Company is considered to operate in 'Capital Market' and "Wealth Management' segments.
Secondary segment

Since the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in India, the Company is considered to operate only in the domestic segment
and therefore there is no reportable geographic segment.

The following table gives information as required under the Indian Accounting Standard - 108 on Segment Reporting.

Sr, No. |Particufars For the year ended| For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
[8 Segment revenue
Capital market 551748 2,636.96
Wealth management (0.76) 338.31
Unaliocated 0.33 14.67
Total income 5,517.05 2,990,94
1 Segment result
Capital market 3,436.67 1,137.80
Wealth management {73.77) 179.71
Unallocated {817 (11.24)
Total 3,354.73 1,306.27
. Sagment assots
Capital market 4,10,990.63 44, 185.88
Wealth management 6.97 2,693.35
Unallocated - -
Total 1,10,997.60 46,879.23
v, Segment liabilities
Capital market 1.04,611.20 40,570.68
Waealth management 0.44 2,440.99
Unallocated - -
Total 1,04,611.64 43,011.67




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited]

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024
{Currency : Indian rupaes in million)

2.37 Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 — “Related Party Disclosure”, as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 :

{A) Names of related parties by whom control is exercised

PAGAC Ecstasy Pte Limited - Ultimate Hofding Company
Nuvama Wealth Maragermeant Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Securities Limited] - Holding company

(B) Names of related parties who exercise significant influence

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (Upto March 30, 2023)

{C} rellow subsidiaries with whom the Company has transactions:

Nuvama Wealth & Investment Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited]

Nuvamia Finariclal Services (UK) Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Financial Services (UK} Limited]

Nuvama [nvestment Advisars Private Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Investment Advisors Private Limited]

Nuvama tnvestment Advisers {Hong Kong) Private Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Securities {(Hong Kong) Pvt Limited]
Nuvama Capital Services (IFSC) Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Securities {IFSC} Limited]

Nuvama Asset Management Limited [Formerly known as ESL Securities Limited]

Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited]

Nuvama Investment Advisors LLC (Formerly known as EAAA LLC) {w.e.f. September 06, 2023)

{D} Subsidiaries of entities exercising significant Influence with whom the Company has transactions {Upto March 30, 2023)

ECL Finance Limited

Edel investment Limited

Edel Land Limited

Edelcap Securities Limited

EdelGive Foundation

Edelweiss Comtrade Limited

ZUNO General Insurance Limited {[Formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance Cempany Limited)
Nidoe Home Finance Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited]
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited

Edeiweiss Retail Finance Limited

Edelweiss Rurzal & Corporate Services Limited

Edelweaiss Securities And Investments Private Limited

Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited

{E} Xey managerial personnel

Mr. Sandesh Sawant (till November 03, 2022) Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Udit Sureka (w.e.f. April 04, 2022) Executive Director

Mr. Arbinda Ghimire (w.e.E. May 08, 2023) Executive Director

Mr. Shiv Sehgal Non-Executive Director
Mr. Birendra Kumar {w.e.f. November 13, 2023) Independent Director
Mr. Manoj $Sharma {w.e.f. January 1, 2024) Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Giriia Joshi {w.e.f, January 1, 2024) Coampany Secretary

(F) Associate of Holding Company with whom transactions have taken place
Nuvama Custodial Services Limited {formerly Edelweiss Capital Services Limited)

{G) Fellow entities of the ultimate holding company
Asia Pragati Strategic Investment Fund




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited]

Notes to the financlal statements {Continued}
For the year ended March 31, 2024
{Currency : Indian rupees in mitlion)

2.37 Transactions with related parties during the year ended March 31, 2024

Sr, No. Nature of Transaction Related Party Name March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Capital account transaction

1 Sale of securities Nuvama Wealth Management Limited [Formerly 5.00 B

Edelwelss Securities Limited]
Current account transaction

2 Margin received aggregate from ECL Finance Limited - 2,057.82
Edel Investments timited - 5,555.90
Edel Land Limited - 54,614.21
Edelcap Securities Limited - 7,701.52
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly 5,42,318.46 1,46,484.76
Edelweiss Braking Limited]
Nuvarna Wealth Finance Limited [Formerly Edelweiss 35,628.96 53,229.96
Finance & Investments Limited]
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited [Formerly 15,27,042.69 13,01,063.29
Edelweiss Securities Limited)
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited - 0.10
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited # - 0.00
gdelweiss Investment Advisors Limited - 1,720.53
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited - 0.81
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 0.55
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited # - 0.00

3 Margin repaid aggregate to ECL Finance Limited - 2,415.26
Edel Investments Limited - 6,250.48
Edel Land Limited - 53,859.86
Edelcap Securities Limited - 7,792.35
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited [Formerly 5,34,449.73 1,41,214.29
Edelweiss 8roking Limited]
Nuvama Wealth Firance Uimited [Formerly Edelweiss 36,367.02 52,682.37
Finance & Investments Limited)
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited # - 0.00
tuvama Wealth Management Limited [Formerly 15,08,540.89 13,00,246.51
Edelweiss Securities Limited)
Edelweiss Comtrade Lirmited . 017
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Limited - 1,724.35
Edelweiss Securities And [nvestments Private Limited - 0.81
Edelweiss Ruraj & Corporate Services Limited - 2.05
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited # - 0.00

4 Business Service Charges Income from Nuvama Wealth Management Limited [Formerly . 2.81
Edelweiss Securities Limited)
Nuvarna Wealth Finance Limited {Formerly Edelweiss - 145
Finance & Investments Limited)
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 1.58
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly - 5.96
Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Nuvama Asset Management Limited (Formerly ESL - 0.70
Seturities Limited)
Nuvama Custodial Services Limited (Formerly Edelweiss - 0.39
Capital Services Limited)

5 Clearing charges income received from Edel Land Limited - 39.47
ECL Finance Limited - 0.81
Edel Investments Limited - 58.24
Edelcap Securities Limited - 6.63
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited (Formerly Edelweiss 10.23 11.98
Finance & Investments Limited)
Nuvama Wealth and Invastment Limited (Formerly 130.67 83.05
Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited (Formerly 504.37 85.44
Edelweiss Securities Lirnited)
Edelweiss Investrnent Advisors Limited - 2.04
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Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited]

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024
{Currency : Indian rupees in mitlion)

2.37 Transactions with refated parties during the year ended March 31, 2024

Sr. No. Nature of fransaction

Related farty Name

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

6 Chaperoning fees paid to

7 Infrastructure service charges received from

8 Cost reimbursement received from

9 Cost reimbursement paid to

10 Fund Accounting Fee Income received from

11 interest expensas on margin placed by

12 Referral & Other Fees Income fram

13 Referral & Other Fees expenses o

Nuvama nvestment Advisors Private Limited [Formerly
known as Edelweiss Investment Advisors Private Limited]
Nuvama Financial Services {UK) Limited [Formerly known
as Edelweiss Financial Services (UK) Limited]

Nuvama Investment Advisors {Hong Kong) Private Limited
{Formerly known as Edelweiss Securities (Hong Kang) Pyt
Eimited]

Edel Investments Limited

Edelcap Securities Limited

Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {Formerly
Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {Farmerly
Edetweiss Securities Limited)

Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly
Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited (Formerly Edelweiss
Finance & investments Limited}

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited (Formerly
Edelweiss Securities Limited)

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Nuvama Asset Management Limited (Formerly ESL
Securities Limited)

Nuvarna Custodial Services Limited {(Formerly Edelweiss
Capital Services Limited)

£del Land Limited

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited (Formerly
Edelweiss Securities Limited)

Nido Home Finance Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss
Housing Finance Limited]

ECL Finance Limited

Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly
Edelweiss Broking Limited}

Edel Land Limited

MNuvama Woealth Finance Limited {Formerly Edelweiss
Finance & Investments Limited)

Nuvama Custodial Services Limited (Formerly Edelweiss
Capital Services Limited)

£delweiss Asset Management Limited

Edel Land Limited

ECL Finance Limited

Edel Investments Limited

Edelcap Securities Limited

Nuvama Wealth and investment Limited {Formerly
Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited (Formerly Edelweiss
Finance & tnvestments Limited)

MNuvama Wealth Management Limited (Fermerly
Edelweiss Securities Limited}

Nuvama Custadial Services Limited (Formerly Edelweiss
Capital Services Limited)

Nuvarna Wealth and Investment Limited (Formeely
Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited [Formarly
Edelweiss Securitias Limited)

Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited {Formerly Edelweiss
Finance & Investments Limited)

Nuvama Investment Advisors LLC (Formerly known as
EAAA LLC}

38.67

12.38

13.14

0.03

c.01

13.50

0.85

183.71

87.02

60.98

24.32

12.81

ig34

8.33
10.00
10.00

10.00

77.54

25.63

37.13

151,12
9.18

12,19
0.55
107.54
118.08
0.10

0.10
3.28

66.75
0.01

032

2.98
6.14
1.07
0.49
513.05
1.08

2378

26.51

43,591

107.03




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)]

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024
{Currency : Indian rupees in millicn)

2.37 Transactions with related parties during the year ended March 31, 2024

Finance & investments Limited}

Sr. No. Nature of Transaction Related Party Name March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

14 Research Service Fees paid to Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {Farmerly 12.00 12.00
Edelweiss Securities Limited)

15 Property, ptant and equipment sold to Edel Investments Limited - 0.01
Edelcap Securities Limited - Q.00

16 Gratuity liability transferred to Nuvama Custodial Services Limited {Formerly Edelweiss - 0.15
Capital Services Limited}
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited [Farmerly - Q.75
Edelweiss Broking Limited]

17 Gratuity liability transferred from £delweiss Rura! & Corporate Services Limited - 0.10
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {Formerly - 0.01
Edelweiss Securities Limited)
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {Formerly - 0.09
Edelweiss Broking Limited)

18 Interim dividend paid to Nuvama Wealth Management Limited [Formerly - 65.81
Edelweiss Securities Limited)

19 Expenses for employee stock option ptans Edefweiss Financizl $ervices Limited - -0.15
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited (Formerly 1.86 1.26
Edelweiss Securities Limited)

20 Expenses for employee Stock Appreciation Rights Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 0.43

21 Insurance premium paid to Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {Fermerly 0.17 0.20
Edelweiss Securities Limited)
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited - 0.02

22 Mediclaim expenses paid to ZUNO General Insurance Limited {Formerly known as - 4.44

. Edelweiss General Insurance Comgany Limited|

23 C5R expenses EdelGive Foundation - 27.88

24 Branding fee paid to Nuvama Wealth Management Limited (Formerly (0.07) 447
Edelweiss Secuzities Limited)

25 ESOF charge Reversai recovered {through Reserves & Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 1.47

Surplus)

26 Short term loan taken from Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited [Formerly Edelweiss 12,497.60 -
Finance & Investments Limited}

27 Short term loan repaid to Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited [Formerly Edelweiss 12,497.60 .
Finance & investments Limited]

28 Interest expenses on borrowing Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited {Formerly Edelweiss 1.60
Finance & Investments Limited)

29 Managerial remuneration (refer note 1) Key managerial personnel 21.39 15,76

30 Director sitting fees Key manageriat personnel 0.20 -

Balances with refated parties

31 Accrued interest expenses on margin placed by Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited {Formerly Edelweiss 0.06 0.17
Finance & Investrments Limited}
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {Formerly 263,36 126.21
Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Nuvama Wealth Management Limitad (Formerly 82.57 7.08
Edelweiss Securities imited)

32 Accrued interest expenses on borrowing Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited [Formerly Edelweiss 144 -
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Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited]

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024
[Currency : Indian rupees in miliion)

2.37 Transactions with related parties during the year ended March 31, 2024

5r. No, Nature of Transaction Related Party Name March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

33 Trade Payables to Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited (Formerly Edeiweiss - 2.44
Finance & Investments Limited)
Nyvama Wealth and Investment Limited {Formerly 0.58 6,06
Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {Fermerly 36.36 32,05
Edelweiss Securities Limited)
Asia Pragati Strategic Investment Fund - 90.00
Nuvama Asset Management Limited {Formerly ESL - 1.65
Securities Limited)
Nuvama Investment Advisors LLC (Formerly known as 2.83 -
EAAA LLC)
Nuvama Custodial Services Limited {Formerly Edelweiss 14.58 -
Capital Services Limited)

34 Trade receivables from Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {Formerly 1.45 -
Edelweiss Securities Limited)
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited {Formerly Edelweiss 1.26 -
Finance & Investments Limited)
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {Formerly 4,32 -
Edelweiss Broking limited)
Nuvama Custodial Services Limited (Formerly Edelweiss 5.50 -
Capital Services Limited)
Nuvama Asset Management Limited {Formerly ESL 0.25 -
Securities Limited}

35 Advances recoverable in cash or kind Nuvama Wealth Management Limited (Formerly 0.54 0.01
Edelweiss Securities Limited)
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {Formeriy 0,08 0.0%
Edelweiss Broking Limited)

36 Others payable PNuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly 0.07 0.75
Edelweiss Broking Lirmited)
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {Formerly 1.07 0.07
Edelweiss Securities Limited)
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited {Formerly Edelweiss - [0.00)
Finance & Investments Limited) #

37 Margins payable to clients Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited (Formerly Edelweiss 330.90 68.96
Finance & Investrments Limited) ;
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {Formeriy 19,433.53 931.73
Edelweiss Securities Limited)
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (Formerly 21,978.44 14,309.71
Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Off Balance $heet [tems

38 Corporate guarantee received from Nuvama Wealth Management Limited [Formerly 12,500.00 10,500.00
£delweiss Securities Limited]

39 ligquidity support availed frem Asia Pragati Strategic Investment Fund - 9,000.00

# Amount is less than Rs. 0.01 million

Note 1 Information relating to remuneration paid to key managerial personnel mentioned above excludes provision made for gratuity and leave encashment
which are provided for group of employees on an overall basis. These are included on cash basis. The variable compensation included herein is on cash

basis.

Note 2 Edelweiss Financial Services Limited {the “Company” or "EFSL") along with its subsidiaries holds 43.74% in the equity shares of Nuvama Wealth
Management Limited {"NWML”) till March 30, 2023, EFSL had significant influence over NWML.
With effect from March 31, 2023, pursuant to the amendment agreement dated March 9, 2023 made to the amended and restated sharehclders’
agreement dated March 18, 2021 between EFSL, Edelwelss Global Wealth Management Limited { "EGWML") , PAGAC Ecstasy Pte Ltd (“PAGAC”) and
NWML, the amendment to the articles of association of NWML, EFSL has lost its significant influence as per Ind AS 28 on NWML.




Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited]

Notes to the financial statements fContinued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024
{Currency : Indian rupees in million}

2.38

Earnings per Share

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 33 on Earnings per share as prescribed under Saction 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the computation of earnings per share is set out below:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
(2) Profit after tax 2,516.81 978.58
[as per Statement of Profit and Loss)
Less: dividend on preference share including dividend distribution tax Nil Nil
Net profit for the year attributable to equity sharehclders 2,516.81 978.58
{b) Calculation of weighted average number of equity Shares of Rs, 10 each
Number of shares culstanding at the beginning of the year 62,67,500 62,67,500
Number of Shares issued during the year - -
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 62,67,500 62,67,500
Welght?d average number of equity shares outstanding during the year {based on the 62,67,500 62,67,500
date of issue of shares)
{c) Weighted average number of dilutive potential equity shares - -
{d) Basic and diluted earnings per share (in rupees) [a)/(b+c) 401,57 156.14

The basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as there are no diluted potential equity shares.

2.38

A,

Contingent liabilities, Capital commitments and lease arrangements

Contingent liabilities {to the extent not provided for}
a) The Company has provided bank guarantees aggregating to X 12,500.00 milfion (March'23: % 14,500.00 million) as on March 31, 2024 to
The National Stock Exchange of India Limited for meeting margin requirements.

The Company has pledged fixed deposits with banks aggregating of £ 3,500.50 million {March'23: % 4,400.64 miltion} as an March 31, 2024
for obtaining the above bank guarantees as per sanction terms,

There are no obligations as on 31st March 2024 other than those disclosed above and in note 2.11A.

b) The Company has received demand notices from tax authorities on account of disallowance of expenditure for earning exempt income
under Section 14A of Income Tax Act 1961 read with Rule 8D of the Income Tax Rules, 1962. The Company kas filed appeal/s and is
defending its position. Based on the favourable outcome in Appellate proceedings in the past and as advised by the tax advisors, Company
is reasonably certain about sustaining its position in the pending cases, hence the possibility of outflow of resources embodying economic
bernefits on this groend is remote.

a} Trading member V-rise

V-Rise Securities Private Limited (‘'VRise'}, a trading member and client of NCSL, defaulted in its obligation to maintain required margin with
NCSL as prescribed under SEBI Circular ¥o.: MRD/DoP/$E/Cir-07/2005 dated Feb 23, 2005 on Comprehensive Risk Management Framewark
and guidelines/regulations of Clearing Corporation, resulting in margin shortfalls between November 2019 to January 2020. To make good
such shortfall NCSL kiquidated the available collateral securities amounting Rs. 222.67 million during the aforesaid period. NCL,
subsequently on January 8, 2020, while inspecting the above matter, noted that fiquidation of securities by NCSL was not in compliance
with its instructions and NCSL failed to perform adequate due diligence of the collaterals of the end clients for ensuring that collaterals
were liquidated only in respect of those with a margin shortfall as against liquidation of overall collaterals placed by Vrise, Consequently,
Membership and Cere Settlement Guarantee Fund Committee (*MCSGFC”) of NCL passed an order on February 13, 2020 against NCSL for
its failure to adiere to the NCL instructions which resulted in & violation of securities fFaws and directed NCSL 1o reinstate the securities of
the end clients of Vrise which were wrongly liguidated. Thereafter, NCSL filed an appeal against the abave order with Securities Appellate
Tribunal {“SAT"} on Febreary 17, 2020 and was able to secure a stay on the matter on February 26, 2020, However, on December 15, 2023,
SAT passed an order dismissing the appeal of NCSL. and upheld the NCL's order for reinstatement of securities. On February 12, 2024, NCSL
filed an appeal before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India (‘Supreme Court’}, inter-alia, seeking a stay against the impugned order of the
SAT, which is currently pending hearing for admission.

8ased on its assessment and legal advice obtained, NCSL is confident that it is in compliance with applicable laws and regulations in this
regard and therefore of the favourable outcome at the Supreme Court. Accordingly, the Campany believes that no adjtsstment in respect of
the above matter is required to be made in the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024,
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Notes ta the financial statements (Contipued}
For the year ended March 31, 2024
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2.39 Contingent liabilities, Capital commitments and lease arrangements {Continued}

b} Trading member Anugrah

1) Nuvama Clearing Services Limited ("NCSL” or "the Company”} is registered as a clearing member with NSE Clearing Limited {“NCL") and provides ctearing
services to various trading members/custodial participant in derivatives segment. NCSL client namely Anugrah Stock & Broking Private Limited (“Anugrah”), a
trading member, defaulted in its obligation to maintain required margin with NCSL as prescribed under SEBI Circular No.: MRD/DoP /SE/Cir-07/2005 dated Feb 23,
2005 on Comprehensive Risk Management Framework and guidelines/regutations of Clearing Corporation, resulting in margin shortfalls between Janusary 2020 to
lune 2020. To imake good such shortfall NCSL liquidated the available collateral securities which were received from Anugrah’s demat account amounting Rs.
4,603.20 million during the aforesaid period. In July 2020, Anugrah transferred its clearing account from NCSL to a different professional clearing member. As a
part of said transfer, Anugrah had given confirmation to NCSL that there are no dues and no client complaints against Anugrah on July 13, 2020. NCL,
subsequently on September 19, 2020, while inspecting the above matter, noted that liquidation of securities by NCSL was not in compliance with the relevant
NCL rules as NCS51, failed to perform adequate due diligence of the collaterals of the end clients for ensuring that collaterais were liquidated only in respect of
those with a margin shortfall as against liquidation of overall collaterals placed by Anugrah. Censequently, Membership and Core Settlement Guarantee Fund
Committee {"MCSGFC”) of NCL passed an order on October 20, 2020 against NCSL for its failure to adhere to the NCL instructions which resulted in a violation of
securities laws and directed NCSL to reinstate the securities of the end clients of Anugrah which were wrongly liquidated. Thereafter, NCSL filed an appeal against
the above order with Securities Appellate Tribunal {*SAT"} on October 28, 2020 on the grounds, inter-alia, that end client level debit obligations were only
available with the trading members and NCSL had no basis to assess the liahility of end client and was able to secure a stay on the matter on November 5, 2020.
Further, the collateral posted by a trading member (Anugrah) comes from the demat account of the trading member {Anugrah) and not from the end dients of
the trading member (Anugrah}. However, on December 15, 2023, SAT passed an order dismissing the appeal of NCSL and upheld the NCL's order for
reinstatement of securities. On December 22, 2023, NCSL filed an appeal before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India ["Supreme Court’), inter-alia, seeking a stay
against the impugned order of the SAT, which is currently pending hearing for admission.

Based on its assessment and Jegal opinion obtained, NCSLis confident that it is in compliance with appticable laws and regulations in this regard and therefore of
the favourable outcome at the Supreme Court. Accordingly, the management of the Company believes that no adjustment in respect of the above matter is
required to be made in the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

2} On a complaint made by certain end-clients of Anugrah Stock and Broking Private Limited {“Anugrah”), the Economic Offence Wing (“EOW”) registered first
information report against Anugrah and its affiliates/promoters for defrauding customers under Ponzi scheme. Although NCSL is not an accused in that matter,
EOW passed a direction marking a debit lien on NCSL's clearing account to the tune of Rs, 4,603.20 million, NCSL challenged this direction before the 47th
Additional Chief Metropolitan Magistrate’s Court at Esplanade, Mumbal and Court temperarily lifted the lien on NCSL's Clearing Account by passing a stay order.
NCSL has since provided undertaking to keep sufficient assets amounting to Rs. 4,603.20 million unencumbered. Due to business exigencies, NCSL filed a
miscellaneous application in the Sessions Court inter alia to permit NCSL to substitute securities given in the undertaking. The Hon'ble Court allowed the
Application for substituting the securities. The Misc. Application filed by NCSL before 47th Additional Chief Metropolitan Magistrate’s Court at Esplanade,
Mumbai has now been transferred to the City Civil & Sessions Court under M.P.LD. Act. The matter is under hearing stage.

3) Further, varigus FIR/Complaints have been filed before EOW at Mumbai/Amravati/Hyderabad /Cyberabad by various end clients of Anugrah against Anugrah
and its associates. NCSL has been made party to the same, The investigations are under process and NCSL is providing relevant documents/ clarifications to the
investigating authorities as and when called for. Various Arbitration/Writ Petitions have been filed before the Hon'ble Bombay High Court {("Hon'ble Court"} by
various end clients of Anugrah against Anugrah and fts associates. NCSE has been made party to the same. Some of the Writ Petitions have been tagged together
and comman orders have been passed to be heard together. Some of the matters has been listed for further hearing.

NCSL believes that it has acted in accordance with the agreement entered with the trading member i.e. Anugrah and in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations. Accordingly, there is no adjustment required in the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024,

Capital commitment (to the extent not provided for}

Estirmated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Rs. 2.61 millian {March'23; Rs, 4,86 million},
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Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024
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2.39 Contingent liabilities, Capital commitments and [ease arrangements {Continued)

D.

2.40

Operating Leases

The Company has entered into commercial leases for premises. This lease has a life of five years. There are no restrictions placed upon by the lessor
by entering into these leases.

The statement of profit and loss shows the following amounts refating to leases

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Depreciation on ROU of building 57.17 132.83
Interest cost 13.85 42.45
Expenses related to short term lease - -
Expenses related to low value lease - -
Measurement of lease Hability
Particulars March 31, 2024  March 31, 2023
Opening balance 195.44 569.84
Transition impact to Ind AS 116 - -
Addition / {disposal} during the year - {262.69)
Add 1 Accretion of interest 13.86 42,45
Less : Payments {70.08} {153.96}
Closing balance 139.22 195.44

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-to-use assets and the movements during the period:

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Opening (Transition to ind AS) 171.23 534,97
Transition impact to Ind AS 116 - -
Addition / (disposal) during the year - {230.91)
Amortisation {57.17) {332.83)
Closing balance 114.06 171.23
Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows ;

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Within one year 73.59 70.09
After one year but not more than five years 77.27 150.86
Tota 150.86 220.85 )

Sponsor capital commitments (net of investments) Rs. Nil million (previous year Rs, 5 million)

Cost sharing

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Securities Umited] being the Holding company incurred expenditure like
branding fee, senior management cost, technology and administrative cost etc. which is for the common benefit of itself and its subsidiaries and
assaciate. These costs expended are reimbursed by the Company on the basis of number of employees, actual identifications etc, On the same lines,
branch running costs expended {if any) by the Holding company for the benefit of its subsidiaries and associate are recovered by the Holding
company. Accordingly, and as identified by the management, the expenditure heads in note 2,28, 2.31 and 2.34 Include reimbursements paid and
are net of reimbursements received based on the management’s best estimate.

tdelwelss Financial Services Limited, being the erstwhile entity having significant influence over the Holding company (till March 30, 2023} along with
fellow subsidiaries incurs expenditure like Group Mediclaim, insurance, rent, electricity charges ete. which is for the comman benefit of itself and its
subsidiaries including the Company. These costs expended are reimbursed by the Company on the basis of number of employees, actual
identifications etc. On the same lines, branch running costs expended (if any) by the Company for the benefit of fellow subsidiaries and associate are
recovered by the Company. Accordingly, and as identified by the management, the expenditure heads in note 2.28, 2.31 and 2.34 include
reimbursements paid during financial year 2022-23 and are net of reimbursements receivet based on the management’s best estimate.
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2.41 Fair Vales of Financial Instruments

The foflowing table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy

Particulars March 31, 2024

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Total derivative financial instruments [assets) - " -
Securities held for trading - 2.87 2.87
‘fotal securities held for trading - 2.87 2.87
Investments u - -
Total investrnents measured at fair value - - -
Total financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis - 2.87 2.87
Particulars March 31, 2023

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Total derivative financial instruments (assets) - - -
Securities held for trading - 2,608.88 2,608.88
Total securities held for trading - 2,608.88 2,608.88
Investments - 5.03 5.03
Total investments measured at fair value - 5.03 5.03
Total financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis - 2,613,581 2,613.91
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Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
For the year ended March 31, 2024
(Currency : Indian rupees in miltion)

2.44 Risk management framework:-
a} Regulatory controls
Introduction and risk profile

‘The Company's averall objective is to manage its clearing business, and the associated risks, [such as credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk,
operational risk etc.) in a manner that balances serving the interests of its customers and investors and protects the safety and soundness of
the Company.

The Cempany is regulated by SEBI & respective exchanges with special focus on trade clearing, client fund/security management, exchange &
client reporting etc. The Company strives for continual improvement through efforts to enhance systemic & manual controls, ongoing
employee training and development and other measures.

Risk Management Structure

The Company has a well-defined risk management process framewark for risk identification, assessment and control in order to effectively
manage risks associated with the various business activities. The risk function is monitored primarily by the business risk group. At the
Company level, there is a ‘Global Risk Group’ which is responsible for managing the risks arising out of various business activities at a central
level.

The Company’s multi-level risk management process ensures that the margin monitoring processes withstand market volatility, As a result,
the Company follows strict margin call process and limits are set and monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Company’s board of directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. They are assisted in Its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and adhoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee,

Risk mitlgation and risk culture

The Company's business processes ensure complete independence of functions and a segregation of responsibilities. Client introduction,
client cn-boarding, credit control processes, centralised operations unit, independent internal auditors for checking compliance with the
preseribed policies/processes at each transaction leve! are all segregated. The Company's risk management processes and policies allow
layers of multiple checks and verifications.

b} Approach to capital management

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with externally imposed
capital requirements.

The Company is regulated by Securities and Exchange Board of India {(“SEB1”) and various Exchanges, |t complies with the rules laid down by
the regulator and the Exchanges.

Asat As at
harch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Share holders fund + Reserve (net-worth) 6,385.96 3,867.56

Particulars
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2,45 Credit risk

Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a customer contract or financial instrument, leading
to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities primarily trade receivables. Company has no significant
concentration of credit risk with any counterparty.

The Company’s management policy is to closely manitor creditworthiness of counterparties by reviewing their credit ratings, financial
statements and press release on regular basis.

The Company’s financial assets are subject to the expected credit loss model are only short-term trade and other receivables. All trade
receivables are expected to be collected in less than twelve months. Company applies the expected credit loss medel for all financial assets
and simplified approach for trade receivables for recognition of impairment loss. Expected credit loss allowance based on simplified approach
in respect of receivables is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience.

Market risks

Risk which can affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments due to adverse movements in market prices
of instrument due to price risk.

The Company is a professional clearing member. The client trades as executed by broker (trading member) are settled by the Company. The
client & its broker keeps sufficient margin in the form of cash, fixed deposits, bank guarantees, etc. as per the prescribed norms of the
exchanges. The same is onwards kept on the respective exchanges. Margin calls are made daily in the normal course of trading howurs so as to
adequately cover client positions. All trades are confirmed to automated straight through process to the client and/or its custodian. Default if
any devolves on either client or the custodian, Hence, there is no market risk to the Company as a professional clearing member.

Price risk (refer note 2.52}

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of individual
investment in prices of financial instruments.

Ligquidity Risk:

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations assaciated with financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company might be unable to
meet its payment obligations when they fali due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress
circumstances.

tiquidity risk emanates from the mismatches existing on the balance sheet due to differences in maturity and repayment profile of assets and
liabilities, These mismatches could either be farced in nature due to market conditions or created with an interest rate view. Such risk can
lead to a possibility of unavailahility of funds to meet upcoming obligations arising from liability maturities. To avoid such a scenario,
Company ensures maintenance of adequate Liquidity Cushion in the form of Fixed Deposits, Cash etc. These assets carry minimal credit risk
and can be liquidated in a very short period of time. Further, Company has undrawn bank facilities.
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Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [Formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited]

Notes to the financial statements {Continved)
For the year ended March 31, 2024
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2.46 Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 19 - Employee Benefits

A}

B)

Pefined contribution plan - Provident fund and national pension scheme

Amount of Rs. 9.13 million (March'23: Rs. 9.38 million) is recognised as expenses in “Employee benefit expenses” - note 2.31 in the statement of profit

and loss,

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The following tables summarize the components of the net benefit expenses recognized jn the profit and loss account and the funded status and

amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the Gratuity benefit plan,

Statement of Profit and Loss account

Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current service cost 2.69 2.82
Interest on defined benefit obligation 176 1.23
Expected return on plan assets - -
Net actuarial lossesfigains} recognrized in the year - -
Past service cost - -
Actuarial (gains) / losses - -
Total intluded in "Employee Benefit Expense* 4,45 4.05
Balance Sheet
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Liability at the beginning of the year 24,38 23.41
interest cost 1.76 1.23
Current service cost 2.6% 2.82
Transfer in / [Qut) 0.38 (0.72)
Past service cost (vested benefit) - .
Benefit paid {1.72) {3.66)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations 0.76 1.30
Liability at the end of the year 28,25 24,38
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets
- As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fair value of plan assets at the start of the year - -
Expected return on plan assets - -
Contributions by employer 1.72 3.66
Benefits paid (1.72) (3.66}
Actuvarial {loss)/gain on plan assets - -
Actual return on plan assets - -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - -
Experience Adjustment:
As at As at As at As at As at
Particulars March 31, March 21, March31,{ March31,| March31,
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Defined Benefit Obligation 28.25 24.38 23.41 23.06 16.49
Fair Valve of Plan Assets - - - - -
Surplus/{Deficit) (28.25) (24.38} (23.41) (23.06) {16.49}
Experience Adjustment on Plan Liabilities: {Gain) /Loss 0.76 1.30 1.86 (0.79) [1.07}
.|Experience Adjustment on Plan Assets: Gain/ {Lass) NA NA NA NA NA
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2.45 Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 19 - Employee Benefits (Contimued)

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity (Continued)
Principle actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date:

Particuiars Asat Asat

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Discount rate current 6.90% 7.10%

Salary escalation current 7.00% 7.00%

Employees attrition rate {based on categories) 0-25% 0-25%

Mortality Rate [ALM 2012- 1ALM 2022-

14 {Ult.) 14 {Ult)

Expected average remaining working lives of employees 3 years 3 years
Movement on Other Comprehensive Income

: As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at start of year (Loss)/ Gain [3.19} {1.88)
Re-measurement an DBO - -
a. Actuarial (Loss)/Gain from changes in demographic assumptions - (0.20}
b. Actuarial {Loss}/Gain from changes in financial assumptions {0.23) 1.81
c. Actuarial (Loss)/Gain from experience over the past years {0.54) {2.92)
Re-measurement an Plan Assets
Return on plan assets excluding amount included in net interest on the
net defined benefit llability/ {asset) ) i
Balance at the end of perind [ year [Loss)/ Gain {3.96) {3.19)
Sensitivity Analysis

As at As at
BOB increases / {decreases) by March 31, 2024 31 March 2023
1% Increase in Salary Growth Rate 0.97 0.87
1% Decrease in Salary Growth Rate (0.91} (0.82}
1% Increase in Discount Rate {0.591) (0.81)
1 % Decrease in Discount Rate 0.98 0.88
1% Increase in Withdrawal Rate {0.05) 10.04)
1% Decrease in Withdrawal Rate 0.08 0.04
Mortality {Increase in expected lifetime by 1 year) # - -
Mortality {Increase in expected lifetime by 3 year) # - -
Movement in Surplus/{Deficit)

. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2024 31 March 2023
Surplus/ [Deficit) at start of year {24.40} [23.43)
Met {Acquisition}/ Divestiture - -
Net Transfer {In}/ Qut {0.38) 0.72
Movement during the year -

Current Service Cost {2.69) {2.82)
Past Service Cost - -
Net interest on net DBO (1.76} (1.23)
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - -
Re-measurement {0.76) {1.30)
Contributions/ Benefits 1.72 3.66
surplus / {Deficit) at end of perlod / year {28.27) {24.40)

# Amount is [ess than Rs. 0.01 million

2.47 The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there are any material foreseeable losses.
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2,48 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Particulars For the year ended| For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company as per the 22.08 77,88
provisions of section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 ! '
Amount spent {paid in cash)
iy Consteuction / acquisition of any assets il Nil
ii} On purpose other than {i) above * 22.08 27.88
Amount spent {yet to be paid in cash) - -
i) On purpose other than (i) above - -
Amount paid to EdelGive Foundation 22.08 27.88

* The amount spent towards corporate social responsibility as mentioned above has been incurred towards various project in the area of
Women Empowerment and Education.

2.49 Margin received from clients

Particulars Asat As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Cash margin 1,03,640.53 39,805.70
Non-cash margin

- Securities* 2,80,526.87 94,789.02

- Fixed Deposits - -

- Bank guarantees - -

Total non-cash margin 2,80,526.87 94,789.02

Total margin received 3,84,167.40 1,34,594.72

*Includes the following:

a} Securities assigned under the “margin pledge” created in favour of the Company as non-cash margin from the clients in accordance with
the SEBI circular no. SEBYHO/MIRSD/DOP/CIR/P/2020/28 “Margin obligations to be given by way of Pledge/Re-pledge in the Depository
System” applicable effectively from September 01, 2020,
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2.50 Ratio Analysis and its elements

Particulars As at [ for the| As at / for the year|Represent in % change Reasons for variance (> 25% <)
year endad Marech| ended March 31, |terms of
31, 2024 2023

Current ratio {refer note 1) 1.06 1.08 % {2%)

Return on equity ratio (refer note 2} 0.4% 0.2% % 1% On account of increase in interest
income on fixed deposits

Return an capital employed {refer note 0.73 0.53 % 37% On account of increase in interest

3) income on fixed deposiis

Net profit ratio (refer note 4) 0.46 033 % 39% On account of increase in income
and decrease in expenses

Return on investment (refer note 5) 0.14 .07 % 105% On account of impairment provision
on investment

Debt-equity Ratio {refer note 6} 0.01 - times -

Net-worth [refer note 7) £,385.96 3,867.56 | Rs. in milficn 65% On account of increase in income
and decrease in expenses

Debt service coverage Ratio 338 2.87 times 18%

{refer note 8}

interest service coverage Ratio 351 2.87 times 22%

{refer note 9}

Net profit after tax 2,516.81 978.58 | Rs. in million 157% On account of increase in incomne
and decrease in expenses

Totai debt to Total assets 0.00 - times -

[refer note 10}

Note

1 Curreng ratio = Current assets / Current liabilities

2 Return on equity ratio = Net profit after tax - preference dividend / Average shareholder's equity

3 Return on capital employed = Earning before interest and taxes / Capital employed = Tangible networth {net-worth - intangible assets) +
Total debt + Deferred tax liability

4 Net profit - Exceptional items / Total income

5 Return on investment = Interest income / Investment

6 Debt-equity Ratio = Tatal debt (Debt securities + Borrowings {other than debt securities))/ Net worth

7 Net worth = Equity share capital + Other Equity

8 Debt Service Coverage Ratio = (Profit before Tax and Finanece cost excluding IND AS 116 impact) / {Finance cost excluding IND AS 116 impact + Total debt}

9 Interest service coverage Ratio = (Profit before Tax and Finance cost excluding IND AS 116 impact) / {Finance cost excluding IND AS 116 impact)

10 Total debt to Total assets = Total debt / Total assets

2.51 Transactions with Struck off Companies

March 31, 2024

Name of the struck off company Nature of Transaction value |Balance Relationship with
transactions with outstanding  [the struck off
struck off company, if any, to
cempany be disclosed

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

March 3%, 2023

Mame of the struck off company Nature of Transaction vajue |Balance Relationship with
transactions with outstanding  |the struck off
struck off company, if any, to
company be disclosed

Moneyflow Securities Pvt. Ltd. Clearing services Nil {D.ZD)E Client

2.52 Price risk:
Index price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in index rates / security value.
The table below indicates the Afternative Investment Fund [AIF) to which the Company had exposure at the end of the reparted periods. The analysis
calculates the effect of a reasonably possible movement of the Alternative Investment Fund (AtF) price (all other variables being constant) on the
statement of profit and loss and equity.

March 31, 2024
Increase in price Effect on profit Effect on Effect on profit Effect on
Alternative Investment Fund i i
[%6) before tax Exjuity Decrease in price (%} before tax Equity
ENR 5 - - 5 - -
March 31, 2023
i ——
Alternative nvestment Fund ncrease in price Effect on profit Effecf on Decrease In price (%) Effect on profit Effecf on
%) before tax Equity before tax Equity
INR 5 0.25 - 5 {0.25) -
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2,53 Foreign currency transactions
The Company has undertaken the following transactions in foreign currency during the year ended.

Forthe year  For the year
ended ended
March 31, March 31,
2024 2023
Expenditure incurred in foreign currency {on accrual basis)
Legal and professional fees 14.95 88.52
Membership and subscription 0.74 1.81
Advertisement and business promotion 1.08 0.56
Staff welfare expenses - 0.30
Computer expenses 1.03 -
Traveiling and conveyance 0.44 0.28
Total expenditure 18,24 31.47
Income earned in foreign currency (on accrual basis) - -
Total income - -

2.54 Others statutory Information

(i The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
Benami property.

(i) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
{iiy The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

{iv) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s} or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries)
with the understanding that the intermediary shall:

a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or .

b} Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{v} The Company has not received any fund from any persen{s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities {Funding Party} with the understanding
{whether recorded in writing or ctherwise} that the Company shall:

a) Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persens or entities identified in any manner whatsoaver by or on behalf of the Funding Party
[Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

b} Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(vi) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disciosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search ar survey or any other relevant provisions of
the Income Tax Act, 1961).

2.55 Rounding off

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest million as per the requirements of Schedule
Hi, unless otherwise stated.
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2,56 (a) The Company has complied with the Rule 3 of Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 amended on August 5, 2022 relating to maintenance of
electronic books of account and other relevant books and papers. The Company's books of accounts and relevant books and papers are
accessible in India at all times and backup of accounts and other relevant books and papers are maintained in electronic mode within India
and kept in servers physically located in India on daily basis.

(b} The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, there are no instance
of audit trail feature being tampered with.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
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